

# Construction of Unique Buildings and Structures





# Calculation of the most effective section of a steel column from the point of view of fire protection

A.V. Krivtcov<sup>1</sup>, V.A. Kazakova<sup>2</sup>, I.A. Mingalimov<sup>3</sup>, P.A. Bogdanov<sup>4</sup>, I.A. Nitsa<sup>5</sup>

Peter the Great St. Petersburg Polytechnic University, 29 Politechnicheskaya St., St. Petersburg, 195251, Russia

ARTICLE INFO

Article history

Received 8 April 2015
Accepted 5 June 2015

Steel constructions, fire protection, load-bearing capacity, calculation, fireproof material

#### **ABSTRACT**

This article is devoted to fireproof processing of steel structures. The main task is to consider different types of sections of rod elements and to choose the most effective section for a steel column from the point of view of fire protection. For the solution of this task the steel columns with various cross sections working in identical entry conditions were considered. All neces-sary calculations for all types of sections were carried out. Results of calculations were pre-sented in the summary table according to which the comparative analysis was made. At the end of work the conclusion that the compound section from four equal corners is the most effective from the point of view of fire protection.

#### Contents

1. Introduction	35
2. Literature review	35
2.1. Object of research	35
3. Description of the calculation	36
3.1. Fire retardant material	36
3.2. Classification of buildings and structures according to fire danger	36
3.3. Calculation of the load bearing capacity and stability	36
3.4. Calculation of the fire-retardant treatment	38
4. Comparative calculations for different cross-sections	39
4.1. Input data	39
4.2. Types of used cross-sections	39
4.3. Calculation example	39
4.4. Result of calculation for different cross-sections	42
4.5. Conclusions by results of calculations	42
5. Conclusion	43

<sup>1</sup> Corresponding author:

<sup>+7 (921) 978 8999,</sup> artcomp2007@ya.ru (Krivtcov Artem Valerevich, Student)

<sup>+7 (921) 923 5300,</sup> veta0792@mail.ru (Kazakova Violetta Aleksandrovna, Student)

<sup>+7 (952) 212 4569,</sup> iurii.mingalimov@gmail.com (Mingalimov lurii Andreevich, Student)

<sup>+7 (911) 991 3456,</sup> paul.bogdanov@gmail.com (Bogdanov Pavel Andreevich, Student)

<sup>5 +7 (921) 886 9811,</sup> niza rina@mail.ru (Nitsa Irina Anatolevna, Student)

## 1. Introduction

Building constructions, including steel are used widely because of the opportunities that they give to various objectives. Steel is often used in construction due to a wonderful combination of technological and operational properties, exemplified by many unique architectural constructions in the world. However, there is an important problem, with which humanity faced since its inception - fire protection. The main objective in this protection is to achieve security of people in the building. The second most important task is the preservation of wealth that can be lost in a fire. Many studies, standards, numerous tests of materials and structures are devoted to this problem. However, because of the importance of this problem and the development of technology, the relevance of the fire safety and search for new technical solutions in this area are retained.

Due to the numerous technical solutions and requirements for steel structures, it is difficult to expect the same solutions for different constructions. Firstly, the solution of fire protection of steel structures considers a number of factors the importance of which often depends on the function of construction. Therefore, it is important to determine the fundamental criteria that define the ways of fire protection of steel structures.

The main task of this work was the calculation of the steel column in order to identify the most beneficial cross section in terms of fire protection. For this purpose in this paper was considered a fireproof material Knauf-Fireboard. The calculation was made according to the Russian regulations: Code Specification 16.13330.2011 "Steel Constructions", Federal Law of 22 July 2008 N 123-FZ "Technical Regulations on fire safety requirements".

### 2. Literature review

Today speed of construction of buildings and constructions become more and more fast. Therefore special attention is riveted on fire safety. Also in a view of increasing construction of high-rise buildings, the increasing popularity is gained by the steel structures having a number of advantages over the concrete. However new norms on calculation are regularly developed for ensuring the demanded fire safety for these design. The analysis of domestic and foreign researches shows that many authors were engaged in the analysis of calculations of steel structures [3, 4, 6, 8, 11, 16].

The special attention to requirements of fire protection of steel structures is paid in the works by Golovanov V.I. [1-3, 5, 7, 9]. In the works he studies properties of both classical spray fireproof materials [1], and modern plate materials on the basis of vermiculite [9]. Also in one of researches the calculation of fire protection of design for objects of the oil and gas industry is presented [7].

In foreign publications the number of studies is devoted to fire protection of steel structures. Work [15] is devoted to calculation of tubular rod elements. In work [13] the analysis of calculation of spray coverings is made for steel elements. In the field of fire protection researches [10, 14] are devoted to modern decisions.

Recently the huge attention is paid to various program complexes for calculation of various designs. Possibilities of use of the program ANSYS complex for calculation of fire protection of steel rod elements are presented both in Russian, and in foreign researches [12, 18]. Work [17] is devoted to the new composite material Penocom used for protection of construction against thermal influence.

#### 2.1. Object of research

The rod element was an object of this research was. For practical application of this work the steel vertical columns working for the central compression were considered. Entry conditions on loading, a class of steel, length and conditions of fixing for all columns were identical, only cross sections were various. All columns were faced with the fireproof plate material Knauf-Fireboard.

#### 2.2. Purpose of research

Main objective of this work was comparison of necessary amount of fireproof material for rod elements of various cross sections. Golovanov V. I. researches were taken as a basis of this work [3, 4, 6, 8, 11, 16]. Also the results received in works [9, 12, 18] were considered.

For the solution of an objective the following tasks were set:

1. To carry out calculations of all considered sections on durability, stability and necessary thickness of fireproof material for these conditions;

2. To carry out the comparative analysis and to draw conclusions on a consumption of metal and fireproof material depending on the cross section of a rod element.

## 3. Description of the calculation

#### 3.1. Fire retardant material

The choice of materials for fire protection of steel structures is based on an understanding of their behaviour under high temperatures. It is important to know that some of the materials having good thermal properties can mechanically collapse from heat stress and thus not provide thermal protection. Others, however, having a flammability, but maintaining the mechanical stability under load during combustion (for example: wood), do not break down for some time and thus provide a barrier between the fire source and the structure. It is important to remember that the construction of the outer device fireproof cladding can significantly affect the fire resistance of a structure. The presence or appearance of fire-permeable holes can negate all the efforts of fireproofing.

In this paper material Knauf-Fireboard has been considered. It is a non-combustible plate material developed by Knauf for fire safety of buildings.

Knauf-Fireboard is fire retardant facing material and is widely used in the finishing of technical premises, where, according to the fire safety requirements is necessary to use non-combustible materials, such as emergency exits of offices and shopping centers, evacuation routes. This product is also used in places where there is an increased risk of fire. Application of this material facilitates localization of fire in a room and preventing distribution of a flame outside.

The difference between Knauf-Fireboard and other gypsum products is that the moisture evaporates from gypsum core after interaction with the flame, wherein the plate does not break or crack rather long time. Also plates Knauf-Fireboard have non-flammable fiberglass, which is a fire-resistant reinforcing frame product. Such reinforcing frame provides enhanced fire of entire structure.

#### 3.2. Classification of buildings and structures according to fire danger

The time of the fire cannot be infinite both because of the limited quantity of combustible material and due to the limited lifetime of constructions under fire exposure. Therefore, in Fire safety regulations for most constructions fire is normalized in the range of 0 to 6 hours [6].

Constructions separated into bearing and non-bearing have a significant difference in the required fire resistance. Therefore, different technical retardant solutions are used for them, although they can be made of a same steel assortment. For load-bearing elements an important factor is their responsibility for geometric variability of the structure under load during a fire, which can significantly reduce the critical temperature of steel. For non-bearing elements fire protection requirements are less stringent, as their role in ensuring the stability of the frame is negligible.

Fire class of building	Fire-resistance		
	load-bearing constructions	non-bearing constructions	
I	R120	E30	
II	R90	E15	
III	R45	E15	
IV	R15	E15	
V	No regulations	No regulations	

Table 1. Compliance of fire class and fire-resistance of building constructions

Table 1 is a part of Table 21 from №123-FZ «Technical regulations for fire safety requirements» - the main Russian regulation in fire safety. There are five fire classes of building in Russian regulations. In this paper, we considered only load-bearing structures in the building of the first fire class.

#### 3.3. Calculation of the load bearing capacity and stability

Before making calculation of steel structures for fire-retardant treatment, you need to check an element in accordance with Code Specification 16.13330.2011. The calculation is made depending on the type of work of a

rod. If the tension in a rod operates, it is just necessary to check the load bearing capacity according to the formula:

$$\frac{N}{A_n R_{\nu} \gamma_c} \le 1,\tag{1}$$

where

N – longitudinal force, acting on the rod, kg;

 $A_n$  – cross sectional area, cm<sup>2</sup>;

 $R_y$  – calculated resistance of steel working on tensile, compression, bending in yield strength, kg/cm<sup>2</sup>;

 $\gamma_c$  – coefficient of working conditions.

If the element is in compression, then in addition to checking for load-bearing capacity it is also necessary to check the stability of the element according to the formula:

$$\frac{N}{\varphi A_n R_{\nu} \gamma_c} \le 1,\tag{2}$$

where

 $\varphi$  – stability factor in the central compression.

The value of the stability factor in the central compression should be determined by the formula:

$$\varphi = \frac{0.5(\varsigma - \sqrt{\varsigma^2 - 39.48\lambda'^2}}{\lambda'^2},\tag{3}$$

where

 $\zeta$  – coefficient;

 $\lambda'$  - conditional flexibility of the rod.

The coefficient  $\delta$  should be determined by the formula:

$$c = 9.87(1 - \alpha + \beta \lambda') + \lambda'^2. \tag{4}$$

where

 $\alpha$  and  $\beta$  – coefficients, that should be determined according to the Table 7 of Code Specification 16.13330.2011 "Steel Constructions".

The conditional flexibility of the rod should be determined by the formula:

$$\lambda' = \lambda \sqrt{\frac{R_y}{E}},\tag{5}$$

where

 $\lambda$  – flexibility of the rod;

 $R_v$  – calculated resistance of steel working on tensile, compression, bending in yield strength, kg/cm<sup>2</sup>;

E - modulus of elasticity of steel, kg/cm<sup>2</sup>.

The flexibility of the rod should be determined by the formula:

$$\lambda = \frac{l_0}{i_{\min}},\tag{6}$$

where

37

 $l_0$  – calculated length of the rod, cm;

 $i_{min}$  - minimal radius of gyration, cm.

The minimal radius of gyration should be determined by the formula:

$$i_{\min} = \sqrt{\frac{I_{\min}}{A_n}},\tag{7}$$

where

 $I_{min}$  – minimal moment of inertia, cm<sup>4</sup>;

 $A_n$  – cross sectional area, cm<sup>2</sup>.

The calculated length of the rod should be determined by the formula:

$$l_0 = \mu l, \tag{8}$$

where

I – geometrical length of the rod, cm;

 $\mu$  – coefficient, depending on the rod fixing conditions, that should be determined according to the Table 30 of Code Specification 16.13330.2011 "Steel Constructions".

#### 3.4. Calculation of the fire-retardant treatment

Steel for building structures has a high thermal conductivity, which significantly effects on structural fire protection engineering solutions. On one side elements of the steel structure heat up quickly, and the other - well distribute and dissipate heat. Balance of heat flows in heating and cooling determines the change in temperature of the structure and the time to reach the critical temperature.

To make decisions on fire protection of steel structures two criteria were introduced: the given thickness of the metal and the critical temperature. The given thickness of metal allows consider the cross section of the steel profile and the nature of the heat supply in case of fire. Like every criterion the given thickness of metal involves some simplification, but for many practical solutions it is very useful [12, 18].

The given metal thickness is calculated by the formula:

$$\delta = \frac{A_n}{P},\tag{9}$$

where

 $A_n$  – cross sectional area, cm<sup>2</sup>;

P - heated perimeter, cm.

The heated perimeter value depends on the geometry of the cross section and is calculated according to the formulas in Table 3 of the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing made of plates Knauf-Fireboard, approved with EMERCOM Russia.

This criterion shows how effective heat removal is in relation to heating depending on the shape of the cross section under the conditions of heating.

Another important criterion is the critical temperature. The fire resistance of steel structures occurs as a result of warming up their sections or parts of it to the critical temperature. The critical temperature of steel structures under a load depends on the type of design scheme of its bearing, the metal stamp and the value of the load [8, 9, 14].

The critical temperature is defined as the lowest value of the two found in Table 1 of the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing made of plates Knauf-Fireboard, approved with EMERCOM Russia, depending on the values of the coefficients  $\gamma_t$  and  $\gamma_e$ , take into account changes in regulatory resistance and modulus of elasticity of steel.

Coefficient  $y_t$  is calculated by the formula:

$$\gamma_t = \frac{N}{A_n R_v},\tag{10}$$

where

N – longitudinal force, acting on the rod, kg;

 $R_v$  – calculated resistance of steel working on tensile, compression, bending in yield strength, kg/cm<sup>2</sup>.

Coefficient  $\gamma_e$  is calculated by the formula:

$$\gamma_e = \frac{Nl_0^2}{\pi^2 E I_{\min}}.$$
 (11)

where

 $I_0$  – calculated length of the rod, cm;

 $I_{min}$  – minimal moment of inertia, cm<sup>4</sup>;

E - modulus of elasticity of steel, kg/cm<sup>2</sup>.

# 4. Comparative calculations for different cross-sections

#### 4.1. Input data

An object of research is a vertical steel column with applied longitudinal force. The input data for the task is:

- Class of fire resistance of the building: I;
- Type of rod work: compression;
- Type of fixing: fixing the ends;
- Type of cladding and heating conditions: facing a box-shaped with 4 sides;
- Longitudinal force: 90000 kg;
- Geometrical length of the rod: 300 cm;
- Grade of steel: C235;
- The initial modulus of elasticity of steel: 2100000 kg/cm<sup>2</sup>.

The task is to select cross sections satisfying the conditions of strength and stability and to calculate the necessary thickness of the plate material Knauf-Fireboard for each cross-section in the current input data.

### 4.2. Types of used cross-sections

In the calculation the most popular types of cross-sections were used: I-profiles, pipes, square profile, the composite section of the two channels, the composite sections of four equal corners.

#### 4.3. Calculation example

#### Characteristic of construction:

Degree of fire resistance of the building: I.

In accordance with the Table 1: the fire resistance of structure is 120 min.

#### Characteristic of section:

Cross-sectional view: Hot-rolled steel I-profile (GOST 8239-89) number 33.

In accordance with the assortment of metal, used in GOST 8239-89, geometrical characteristics of the section are presented in the Table 2.

#### Table 2. Geometrical characteristics of the section

h, cm	b, cm	A <sub>n</sub> , cm <sup>2</sup>	I <sub>min</sub> , cm⁴
33,0	14,0	53,8	419,0

#### Characteristic of steel:

Grade of steel: C235.

 $R_v=2250 \text{ kg/ sq.cm}$ .

#### Strength and stability

As the compression in a rod operates, it is necessary to check the load bearing capacity according to the formula (1):

$$\frac{90000}{53.8 \cdot 2250 \cdot 0.95} \le 1;$$
$$0.78 \le 1.$$

So the strength is provided.

The type of fixing: fixing the ends. In accordance with Table 30 of Code Specification 16.13330.2011 "Steel Constructions":  $\mu$ =0,5.

The calculated length of the rod should be determined by the formula (8):

$$l_0 = 0.5 \cdot 300;$$

$$l_0 = 150$$
 cm.

The minimal radius of gyration should be determined by the formula (7):

$$i_{\min} = \sqrt{\frac{419}{53.8}};$$

$$i_{\min} = 2,79$$
 cm.

The flexibility of the rod should be determined by the formula (6):

$$\lambda = \frac{150}{2.79};$$

$$\lambda = 53,75.$$

The conditional flexibility of the rod should be determined by the formula (5):

$$\lambda' = 53,75\sqrt{\frac{2250}{2100000}};$$

$$\lambda' = 1.76$$
.

Cross-sectional view: Hot-rolled steel I-profile. In accordance with Table 7 of Code Specification 16.13330.2011 "Steel Constructions":  $\alpha$ =0,04;  $\beta$ =0,09.

The coefficient  $\zeta$  should be determined by the formula (4):

$$\varsigma = 9.87(1 - 0.04 + 0.09 \cdot 1.76) + 1.76^{2};$$
  
 $\varsigma = 14.14.$ 

The value of the stability factor in the central compression should be determined by the formula (3):

$$\varphi = \frac{0.5(14.14 - \sqrt{14.14^2 - 39.48 \cdot 1.76^2})}{1.76^2};$$

$$\varphi = 0.86.$$

The element is in compression, then in addition to checking for load-bearing capacity it is also necessary to check the stability of the element according to the formula (2):

$$\frac{90000}{0,86 \cdot 53,8 \cdot 2250 \cdot 0,95} \le 1;$$
$$0.91 \le 1.$$

So the stability is provided.

#### Fire-retardant treatment

Type of cladding and heating conditions: facing a box-shaped with 4 sides. In accordance with Table 3 of the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing made of plates Knauf-Fireboard, approved with EMERCOM Russia, heated perimeter should be determined by the formula:

$$P = 2b + 2h,$$
 (12)  
 $P = 2 \cdot 14 + 2 \cdot 33;$   $P = 94$  cm.

Given metal thickness is calculated by the formula (9):

$$\delta = \frac{53,8}{94};$$

$$\delta = 0.572$$
 *cm*.

Coefficient  $y_t$  is calculated by the formula (10):

$$\gamma_t = \frac{90000}{53,8 \cdot 2250};$$

$$\gamma_t = 0.74$$
.

In accordance with Table 1 of the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing made of plates Knauf-Fireboard, approved with EMERCOM Russia, critical temperature:

$$T_{cr} = 344,18$$
 °C.

Coefficient ye is calculated by the formula (11):

$$\gamma_e = \frac{90000 \cdot 150^2}{3,14^2 \cdot 2100000 \cdot 419};$$
$$\gamma_e = 0,23.$$

In accordance with Table 1 of the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing made of plates Knauf-Fireboard, approved with EMERCOM Russia, critical temperature:

$$T_{cr} = 898,28$$
 °C.

So the minimal critical temperature:

$$T_{cr} = 344,18$$
 °C.

In accordance with the Instruction for calculation of the actual limits of fire resistance of steel structures with flame-retardant facing, approved with EMERCOM Russia, the minimum allowable thickness of Knauf-Fireboard in these conditions is **32,5 mm**.

#### 4.4. Result of calculation for different cross-sections

The results of calculation for different cross-sections are presented in the Table 3.

Composite Composite Square profile section of the section of four Cross-I-profile №33 Pipe E325x9 160x8 (GOST two channels № equal corners (GOST 8239-89) section (GOST 10704-91) 30245-2003) 20 (GOST 8240-**75x8 (GOST** 89) 8509-93) **Picture** 32,5 33.0 20,0 h, cm 16,0 15.0 b, cm 14,0 32,5 16,0 15,2 15,0 A<sub>n</sub>, cm<sup>2</sup> 53,8 45,31 46,44 46,8 46,0 1740,0 1657,2 1556,0 419,0 5818,9 I<sub>min</sub>, cm<sup>4</sup> P, cm 94,0 130,0 64,0 70,4 60,0 0,665 0,572 0,349 0,726 0,767 δ, cm T<sub>cr</sub>, °C 344,18 178,75 193,99 198,69 188,15 32,5 32,5 45,0 32,5 40,0 Δ, mm 0,104 0,175 0,104 0,071  $V, m^3$ 0,075

Table 3. Results of calculation for different cross-sections

Δ, mm – minimum allowable thickness of Knauf-Fireboard;

V, m<sup>3</sup> – total volume of Knauf-Fireboard for a column;

m, kg - total weight of a column.

126,6

m, kg

#### 4.5. Conclusions by results of calculations

109.4

110,4

108,24

After the made calculation it is possible to draw the following conclusions:

210,4

- 1. As a result of calculating a cross-section consisting of four equal corners proved the most cost-effective in terms of the consumption of fireproof material. This section of the column other conditions being equal has the least amount of material Knauf-Fireboard 0,071 m³. Also, this section is the most advantageous in terms of the consumption of metal in the column 108,24 kg.
- 2. Also very economical with both points of view turned cross-section of the square profile. Material consumption Knauf-Fireboard appeared 0,075 m³, and steel consumption was slightly higher than that of the cross-section of four equal corners 109,4 kg.
- 3. The least advantageous in terms of consumption of steel and fire retardant turned cross-section of the pipe (0,175 m³, 210,4 kg). Arranging conditions of stability and strength cross-section was too large, leading to a waste of material.

## 5. Conclusion

The purpose of this work was to reveal the most effective from the point of view of fire protection the cross section of a steel rod element. By the results of conducted research the following conclusions were drawn:

- 1. Calculation of the cross sections of steel rod elements which are the most used today was made;
- 2. As a result of calculation by the most effective from the point of view of a consumption of fireproof material there were sections from four equal corners and a square profile.

#### References

- [1]. Savkin N.P., Golovanov V.I. Napylyayemyye pokrytiya na osnove mineralnykh volokon dlya ognezashchity stalnykh konstruktsiy [Spray covering on the basis of mineral fibers for fire protection of steel structures] // Ognestoykost stroitelnykh konstruktsiy. M.: VNIIPO MVD SSSR. 1980. № 8. Pp. 70-73. (rus)
- [2]. Yakovlev A.I, Golovanov V.I. Ustoychivost tsentralno szhatykh stalnykh sterzhney pri ognevom vozdeystvii [Stability of central compressed steel rods at fire influence] // Ognestoykost stroitelnykh konstruktsiy. M.: VGMIPO MVD SSSR. 1983. Pp. 5-11. (rus)
- [3]. Golovanov V.I., Pavlov V.V., Pekhotikov A.V. Obespecheniye ognestoykosti nesushchikh stroitelnykh konstruktsiy [Ensuring fire resistance of the bearing construction designs] // Pozharnaya bezopasnost. 2002. №3. Pp. 48-58. (rus)
- [4]. Morozov Yu.D., Efron L.I., Chevskaya O.N., Shtychkov N.N., Odesskiy P.D., Solovyev D.V., Moskalenko V.A., Stepashin A.M., Shabalov I.P., Kulik D.V. *Stal s povyshennoy ognestoykostyu dlya metallicheskikh konstruktsiy* [Steel with the increased fire resistance for metal designs] // *Stal.* 2004. № 9. Pp. 48-53. (rus)
- [5]. Golovanov V.I., Pavlov V.V., Pekhotikov A.V. Novyye vidy ognezashchity i metody opredeleniya ognestoykosti stalnykh nesushchikh konstruktsiy [New types of fire protection and methods of determination of fire resistance of the steel bearing structures] // Problemy goreniya i tusheniya pozharov na rubezhe vekov. M.: VNIIPO. 1999. Pp. 121-122. (rus)
- [6]. Parlour B. Protecting buildings from fire // Fire safety. 2004. № 5. P. 18-19.
- [7]. Golovanov V.I., Pekhotikov A.V., Pavlov V.V. Raschet ognestoykosti konstruktsiy iz stali s povyshennymi pokazatelyami ognestoykosti dlya obyektov neftegazovoy promyshlennosti [Calculation of fire resistance of designs from steel with the raised fire resistance indicators for objects of the oil and gas industry] // Territoriya «neftegaz». 2007. № 4. Pp. 72-77. (rus)
- [8]. Du Y. A new temperature–time curve for fire-resistance analysis of structures // Fire Safety Journal. 2012. T. 54. P. 113–120.
- [9]. Golovanov V.I., Pavlov V.V., Pekhotikov A.V. *Inzhenernyy metod rascheta ognestoykosti stalnykh konstruktsiy s ognezashchitoy iz mineralovatnykh plit " ROCKWOOL CONLIT"* [Engineering method of calculating the fire resistance of steel structures with fire protection of mineral wool "Rockwool Conlit"] // Pozharnaya bezopasnost. 2006. №4. Pp. 78-85. (rus)
- [10].Man L. O., Wei J. C., Long M. Jiang, Hui C. Performance Studies and Application of Fire-Resistant Coatings for Steel Structures // Advanced Materials Research. 2013. T. 671-674. P. 479-483.
- [11].Rozenbljum V.I. Stability of a compressed rod under creep // Engineering collection. M.: Science. 1954. T.18. P. 99-104.
- [12].Jun D., Guo-Qiang L., Sakumoto Y. Fire resistance of building constructions. Using the finite element method and computer program ANSYS for steel structures. // Constructions Steel Research. 2004. T. 60. № 7. P. 1007-1027.
- [13].Ryder N., Wolin S., Milke J. An Investigation of the Reduction in Fire Resistance of Steel Columns Caused by Loss of Spray-Applied Fire Protection // Journal of Fire Protection Engineering. 2002. № 1. P. 31-44.
- [14].Landucci G. Design and testing of innovative materials for passive fire protection // Fire Safety Journal. 2009. T. 44. № 8. P. 1103–1109.
- [15].Lin-Hai H. Fire performance of concrete filled steel tubular beam-columns // Journal of Constructional Steel Research. 2001. № 6. P. 697–711.
- [16].Qiang X. Elevated-temperature mechanical properties of high strength structural steel S460N: Experimental study and recommendations for fire-resistance design // Fire Safety Journal. 2013. T. 55. P. 15–21.
- [17]. Shutov F.A., Shcherbanev I.V., Sivenkov A.B. *Penokompozit Penocom: novyy ognestoykiy teploizolyatsionnyy material dlya stroitelnykh konstruktsiy* [Penocom: new fire-resistant heat-insulating material for construction designs] // *Izvestiya YuFU. Tekhnicheskiye nauki* . 2013. №8 (145) Pp. 228-232. (rus)
- [18].Agafonova V.V. Chislennoye modelirovaniye pri otsenkakh ognestoykosti stalnykh konstruktsiy s primeneniyem ognezashchity iz vermikulitovykh plit [Numerical modeling at estimates of fire resistance of steel structures with application of fire protection from the vermiculite plates] // Izvestiya YuFU. Tekhnicheskiye nauki. 2013. №8 (145) Pp. 173-177. (rus)

## Расчет наиболее эффективного сечения стальной колонны с точки зрения огнезащиты

#### А.В. Кривцов, В.А. Казакова, Ю.А. Мингалимов, П.А. Богданов, И.А. Ница

Санкт-Петербургский политехнический университет Петра Великого, 195251, Россия, г. Санкт-Петербург, Политехническая ул., 29

Информация о статье	История	Ключевые слова
УДК 699.814	Подана в редакцию 8 апреля 2015 Принята 5 июня 2015	стальные конструкции, огнезащита, несущая способность, расчет, огнезащитный материал

#### **РИДИТОННА**

В статье поставлена задача – подобрать наиболее эффективное сечение стального стержневого элемента с точки зрения огнезащиты. Для решения данной задачи рассмотрена стальная колонна с различными поперечными сечениями. Начальные условия для всех колонн были одинаковыми. Проведены все необходимые расчеты для всех видов сечений. Результаты расчетов представлены в сводной таблице. Сравнительный анализ показал, что составное сечение из четырех уголков является наиболее эффективным с точки зрения огнезащиты.

<sup>1</sup> Контактный автор:

<sup>+7 (921) 978 8999,</sup> artcomp2007@ya.ru (Кривцов Артем Валерьевич, студент)

<sup>2 +7 (921) 923 5300,</sup> veta0792@mail.ru (Казакова Виолетта Александровна, студент)

<sup>3 +7 (952) 212 4569,</sup> iurii.mingalimov@gmail.com (Мингалимов Юрий Андреевич, студент)

<sup>4 +7 (911) 991 3456,</sup> paul.bogdanov@gmail.com (Богданов Павел Андреевич, студент)

<sup>+7 (921) 886 9811,</sup> niza\_rina@mail.ru (Ница Ирина Анатольевна, студент)

#### Литература

- [1]. Савкин Н.П., Голованов В.И. Напыляемые покрытия на основе минеральных волокон для огнезащиты стальных конструкций // Огнестойкость строительных конструкций. М.: ВНИИПО МВД СССР. 1980. № 8. С. 70-73.
- [2]. Яковлев А.И, Голованов В.И. Устойчивость центрально сжатых стальных стержней при огневом воздействии // Огнестойкость строительных конструкций. М.: ВГМИПО МВД СССР. 1983. С. 5-11.
- [3]. Голованов В.И., Павлов В.В., Пехотиков А.В. Обеспечение огнестойкости несущих строительных конструкций // Пожарная безопасность. 2002. №3. С. 48-58.
- [4]. Морозов Ю.Д., Эфрон Л.И., Чевская О.Н., Штычков Н.Н., Одесский П.Д., Соловьев Д.В., Москаленко В.А., Степашин А.М., Шабалов И.П., Кулик Д.В. Сталь с повышенной огнестойкостью для металлических конструкций // Сталь. 2004. № 9. С. 48-53.
- [5]. Голованов В.И., Павлов В.В., Пехотиков А.В. Новые виды огнезащиты и методы определения огнестойкости стальных несущих конструкций // Проблемы горения и тушения пожаров на рубеже веков. М.: ВНИИПО. 1999. С. 121-122.
- [6]. Parlour B. Protecting buildings from fire // Fire safety. 2004. № 5. P. 18-19.
- [7]. Голованов В.И., Пехотиков А.В., Павлов В.В. Расчет огнестойкости конструкций из стали с повышенными показателями огнестойкости для объектов нефтегазовой промышленности // Территория «нефтегаз». 2007. № 4. С. 72-77.
- [8]. Du Y. A new temperature—time curve for fire-resistance analysis of structures // Fire Safety Journal. 2012. T. 54. P. 113–120.
- [9]. Голованов В.И., Павлов В.В., Пехотиков А.В. Инженерный метод расчета огнестойкости стальных конструкций с огнезащитой из минераловатных плит " ROCKWOOL CONLIT" // Пожарная безопасность. 2006. №4. С. 78-85.
- [10].Man L. O., Wei J. C., Long M. Jiang, Hui C. Performance Studies and Application of Fire-Resistant Coatings for Steel Structures // Advanced Materials Research. 2013. T. 671-674. P. 479-483.
- [11].Rozenbljum V.I. Stability of a compressed rod under creep // Engineering collection. M.: Science. 1954. T.18. P. 99-104.
- [12].Jun D., Guo-Qiang L., Sakumoto Y. Fire resistance of building constructions. Using the finite element method and computer program ANSYS for steel structures. // Constructions Steel Research. 2004. T. 60. № 7. P. 1007-1027.
- [13].Ryder N., Wolin S., Milke J. An Investigation of the Reduction in Fire Resistance of Steel Columns Caused by Loss of Spray-Applied Fire Protection // Journal of Fire Protection Engineering. 2002. № 1. P. 31-44.
- [14].Landucci G. Design and testing of innovative materials for passive fire protection // Fire Safety Journal. 2009. T. 44. № 8. P. 1103–1109.
- [15].Lin-Hai H. Fire performance of concrete filled steel tubular beam-columns // Journal of Constructional Steel Research. 2001. № 6. P. 697–711.
- [16].Qiang X. Elevated-temperature mechanical properties of high strength structural steel S460N: Experimental study and recommendations for fire-resistance design // Fire Safety Journal. 2013. T. 55. P. 15–21.
- [17].Шутов Ф.А., Щербанев И.В., Сивенков А.Б. пенокомпозит Penocom: новый огнестойкий теплоизоляционный материал для строительных конструкций // Известия ЮФУ. Технические науки . 2013. №8 (145) С. 228-232.
- [18].Агафонова В.В. Численное моделирование при оценках огнестойкости стальных конструкций с применением огнезащиты из вермикулитовых плит // Известия ЮФУ. Технические науки. 2013. №8 (145) С. 173-177.
- Кривцов А.В., Казакова В.А., Мингалимов Ю.А., Богданов П.А., Ница И.А. Расчет наиболее эффективного сечения стальной колонны с точки зрения огнезащиты // Строительство уникальных зданий и сооружений. 2015. №6(33). С. 34-46.
- Krivtcov A.V., Kazakova V.A., Mingalimov I.A., Bogdanov P.A., Nitsa I.A. Calculation of the most effective section of a steel column from the point of view of fire protection. Construction of Unique Buildings and Structures, 2015, 6(33), Pp. 34-46.